1993

Joseph C. Jensen v. Davis County Commission : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The farm purchased by the Plaintiff/Appellant, Mr. Jensen, was among some of the original farms settled in Davis County. They were originally settled in the eighteen hundreds by the early Mormon pioneers.

The first priority was to dig a canal from the Weber River to their farms in order to supply irrigation water to their farms. These were all dug with hand labor and horses. The land on Plaintiff's farm and upland farms were all dry polluted with salt or alkali.

One of the first priorities was to dig leaching drains to remove the salts from the soil. This practice of leaching salts is two to four thousand years old in Israel and the Middle East.

When the Davis/Weber canal was established to irrigate the upland farms, they had to install leaching drains to remove the salt and alkali from their farms. This was necessary to make their farms productive and economically successful. Since that time, the farms have been broken up into 5 and 10 acre parcels through estates. All of the people that own the uplands farms have of necessity searched for employment off from the farms in order to survive. The farms would not support their families.

During the 1940's and 1950's the bureau of Reclamation promoted the Weber Basin project by having farmers support the Willard Bay Reservoir, Layton Canal and other Dams on the

Weber river. The Bureau of Reclamation started planning and construction of Willard Bay, canals, and drains for leaching purposes.

During the 1940's, Weber Basin Water Conservancy District was established to provide conservation and development of water resources and leaching drainage in June 1950. After completion of the project, farmers were issued a 10 year development period by the U.S. Government to level, drain, irrigate and provide productive farms by reclaiming their farms to meet the demands of the modern economy.

Properties within the district, were approved for reclamation, and repayments to the United States Bureau of Reclamation have been paid by farmers for the project. Plaintiff's yearly assessment is almost \$6000 for water. The water from the Bureau of Reclamation through the Weber Basin Conservancy District is the main source of water for our farms.

Plaintiff/Appellant sold his Davis/Weber Canal stock when he purchased the Layton Canal stock. The water sold is probably being used in the Park City area now.

Water from the Bureau of Reclamation through the Layton Canal is the main source of water in Plaintiff's area. Water was delivered in 1983 with a ten (10) year development period. Prior to 1983, Plaintiff used Davis and Weber Canal water. The 10 year development period by the Bureau of Reclamation was to install drains, level land, develop irrigation systems, leach the salts or alkali from the soils, etc.

This was all approved by the Bureau of Reclamation and the State of Utah.

The subject property was specifically identified in the Bureau of Reclamation plan used to justify the Willard Bay Project. At the project initiation it was established that other governmental involvement would not be permitted to alter the project.

The United States Soil Conservation Service, Utah State, Utah State University extension service all recommended that Plaintiff place 1200 tons of gypsum on his property. The State of Utah, Agriculture Department, loaned Plaintiff the money to buy the 1200 tons of gypsum. One of the requirements was to insure adequate drainage as specified in Davis County's contract design.

Dr. Robbins, United States Soil Research Agency; Dr. Terry Tindall, soil scientist, Utah State University; Dr. Christenson, soil scientist, State of Utah Agriculture Department, all recommended the spreading of gypsum as long as Plaintiff had drains designed in the Davis County contract drawings. If the drains are not installed, it would be useless to spread the gypsum.

It is a well known fact that 93 million people are being added to this world each year. The World Wide Organizations project that by the year 2011, the world will consume all of the food that farmers can produce. Forty years ago the U. S. Government was trying to get property owners to improve their farm lands to meet the food requirements in the year

2000. With the present starvation in the world, it appears their assumptions were correct.

STATEMENT OF ISSUES

ISSUE #1. Violation of Constitutional Rights. Article V of the United States Constitution states: . . . nor shall be deprived of life, liberty or property without due process of law, nor shall private property be taken for public use without just compensation. The Federal Register Vol. 53, nr. 53, Mar. 18, 1988, Presidential Documents reaffirms the just compensation clause of the Fifth Amendment. Property owners have prevailed when Federal Government has tried to dictate private property use. (Florida Rock Industries Inc. vs. United States, #26682L, in United States Claims Court remanded Court of Appeals for Federal Circuit, Oct. 2, 1982. \$1,029,000 plus interest and attorneys fees was awarded for 98 acres that were taken by the government. (Add. # 17)

The U. S. Claims Court awarded Loveladies Harbor Inc. a takings judgement and awarded just compensation as mandated by the fifth amendment. The Court awarded the Plaintiff \$2, 668,000 plus interest, attorney's fees and costs. (Add. # 17)

Violation of the Utah State Constitution, Article 1, Section 22, Private property for public use: Private property shall not be taken or damaged for public use without just

compensation. The Army is also violating Utah State's rights in accordance with the U. S. Constitution.

ISSUE #2. Violation of Legal Process.

Plaintiff/Appellant's attorney filed suit against the county while at the same time he was engaged in Public Defender work for the county and was receiving compensation for such legal work. (Conflict of Interest) The Plaintiff/Appellant was not informed of this Conflict of Interest as required by ABA Ethics Rule 1.7, Model Rules of Professional Conduct, 1992.

ISSUE #3. Violation of United States Constitution, Article 10.

The powers not delegated to the United States by the Constitution nor prohibited by it to the States, are reserved to the States respectively, or to the people.

The Constitution never delegated to the United States Army the power to dictate the use of farmers, private property. Our forfathers were specific in the Constitution about the rights of private property owners and the functions of the Military.

ISSUE #4. The Second District Court of Utah permitted Davis County to violate a contract that is legal and should be completed as agreed upon. The County's defense of "impossibility to perform" is based on lies, deceit, and misinformation.

The Second District Court of Utah confirmed that a breach of contract had taken place, and the Plaintiff/Appellant was damaged. The Court, however, failed to assess impact, to properly assess damages, award attorney fees, loss of property value and income.

ISSUE #5. The Second District Court of Utah totally ignored President Reagan's Executive Order, 12630 and President Carter's Executive Order, 11990. The Court also ignored Vice President Quayle's Council on Competitiveness in support of President Bush's support for policies and proposed legislation concerning the protection of property rights. (Add. # 4 & # 5)

Property rights must be protected to preserve our freedoms from the military and Federal agencies for the citizens of the United States. These issues are considered critical to the future generations in providing for democracy and an abundant supply of food, shelter, and clothing.

ISSUE #6. Evidence in the form of personal observation of the farm was denied by the District Court Judge who refused to visit the actual property site, so that erroneous testimony and false information could be corrected. This demonstrated a lack of Judicial diligence. (Tr. 88)

ISSUE #7. The Second District Court of Utah failed to take judicial notice of fact that it is common knowledge in

Utah that much of the valley land was practically worthless for agriculture without drainage. (Article II, Rule 201, Judicial notice of adjudicative facts). Agriculture is specifically mentioned on page 480 of Utah Court Rules Annotated, Cottrell v. Millard County Drainage Dist., 58 Utah 375, 199 P. 166, (1921).

JURISDICTION

The Utah Appellate Court has jurisdiction for review of all Utah District Court decisions.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Plaintiff/Appellant's civil rights were violated because his counsel did not represent him effectively. His counsel had a conflict of interest by also being paid by the County for whom the Plaintiff/Appellant's law suit was filed against.

On the second day of the trial, Plaintiff/Appellant asked the Judge to take a 30 minute visit to the property in order to correct the false statements that had been made. But the Judge refused, and it appeared to the Plaintiff/Appellant that the Judge, and the attorneys for both sides had already decided what the verdict would be.

The Army Corps of Engineer's violates the constitution by being involved in farmers private property. The County is using the Army as an excuse to change the policy of past County Commissioners. If the Wetlands Regulations were constitutional, Plaintiff/Appellant's property would still not qualify for the wetlands program for the following reasons:

- a. Irrigation of uplands causing wetland are not included in the Army's permit process.
- b. Land that has been farmed prior to 1985 is not included. Subject land has been farmed for years before 1985.
- c. Farms that were included in a program funded by Congress are not included. Congress passed the Bureau of Reclamation project over 40 years ago. This included the Plaintiff/Appellant's farm and that of his neighbors.
- d. The water to be dumped on the Plaintiff/Appellant's property is non-point source water which is polluted water from storm runoff. The water does not flow into navigable water, but is distributed by an irrigation ditch over several acres of weeds.

The U.S. Supreme Court has ruled that the Army's wetland program must comply with the Constitution's Fifth Amendment. The Supreme Court considered it was a taking unless private property owners were duly compensated.

A contract is binding, and because the County is inefficient or changes its mind is no reason to breach a contract. Residential properties are transferred by contract,

money is borrowed by contract, buildings are constructed by contract, and all types of assets are transferred by contract. These contracts are enforced by the law. Subject contract must also be enforced.

No laws, Federal or State, were referenced by Defendant (Davis County). In the Court's Findings of Fact, and Conclusion of Law and Order, and Memorandum of Decision, no laws are referenced. How can anyone refute an interpretation of the law, if no law is identified. The Court's decision was based on opinions and hearsay evidence that should not have been permitted. When the Army's Corp of Engineering representative refused to testify, all letters, documents, etc that were based on hearsay should have been disallowed by the Court.

Professor Hanks, Professor James, Terry Tindall Phd, and Dr. Robins, all used different parameters than Professor Willardson. They never would agree with his testimony. For example, Dr. Robins is considered one of the two top soils and drainage experts in the world. After reviewing the contract drainage design drawings, he stated it was a good design; but don't settle for anything less. Your field drains should be over six feet deep with the water dumping down into the top of the water in the drain." He commented that the large volume of water that flowed into the storm drain was considerable.

The County, and allegedly the Army, totally disregarded President Regan's and President Carter's executive order #12630 and #11770. President Regan's Executive Order on

Governmental Actions and Interference With Constitutionally Protected Property Rights was written to stop the Army from taking private property for public use without just compensation. If the Army wanted Plaintiff/Appellant's property for public use by considering it wetlands, the Army should purchase the land.

President Carter's Executive Order was for Federal lands only. President Carter was addressing the responsibility of acquiring, managing, and disposing of federal lands and facilities. (Add. # 4 & #5)

The violation of the Utah Constitution that protects property rights for its citizens also took place. President Brigham Young was also dedicated to developing farms, constructing homes, and promoting an environment for protecting families and their property. (Art. 1 Sec. 22, Utah State Constitution)

Since the present County Officials have taken over responsibility for County services to county property, we have more weeds, insects, mosquitoes, rats, etc that are a hazard to our farms and health. Farmers do not like to use herbicides and insecticides, as they are a hazard to health if not very carefully handled. Wetlands, multiply the problem for the farmers several times over.

The Federal Government solicited farmers to support the project and reclaim the land to return it to productive farms. Plaintiff/Appellant purchased the land at their recommendation in order to return it to GOD for production of

food for our grandkids and earn a few brownie points for when he goes through the Pearly Gates.

ARGUMENTS

VIOLATION OF CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHTS, UNITED STATES, ARTICLE V; AND UTAH CONSTITUTION, ARTICLE 1.

Point #1.

Article 5 of the U.S. Constitution has been upheld by the Supreme Court, Claims Court, Court of Appeals and lower Courts. It is one of the few things in this world that has been the guiding light to keep our free enterprise system functioning with some degree of honesty. The free enterprise system and protection of private property rights are why our nation has been the greatest nation in the world.

Point #2.

Presidents Reagan, Carter and Bush have upheld the Article V, Fifth Amendment, takings law in their actions. President Reagan directed his employees to follow his 12630 Executive Order requiring them to cease and desist from taking the use of private property without due compensation for the property owners. (Add. # 4). President Carter restricted his Executive Order to Federally owned property. Private property was not included in his 11990 Executive Order. (Add. # 5)).

Point #3. President Bush discontinued the use of the Army's proposed use of the Federal Manual for Delineating Wetlands written by the Army and dated August 14, 1991. This manual was submitted three times and turned down as a result of 30,000 letters of complaint mainly by farmers. The original Army publication only received 100 to 300 comments depending on the year submitted for public comment.

Point #4.

Congress passed a law requiring the National Academy of Science to write a new manual. The Army's manuals never took into consideration the differences between southeast states with several inches of rainfall in one day compared to the Rocky Mountain states that are desert with little rain and, in addition, have an alkali soil problem. (Add. #16)

Point #5

During the summer months, the subject farm area may receive four to five inches of rainfall in an average summer season. Florida receives that much rain in one day. For these reasons Utah farmers have been handicapped due to the lack of rain and lack of alkali leaching abilities. Farmers have paid for the canals and reservoirs in order to properly irrigate their farms. If farmers are denied the proper use of their drainage, leaching, and irrigation techniques, their private property is being confiscated by the taking of their properties use without just compensation. (Add. # 21)

VIOLATION OF LEGAL PROCESS

Point #1.

Plaintiff/Appellant was denied effective assistance or counsel by his attorney. His attorney wrote false statements which were then signed by the Court Judge, Jon Memmott's Memorandum of Decision. Plaintiff/Appellant's attorney was

also on the payroll of the Defendant, County, at the time of the adjudication. The attorney's statements benefitted the Defendant, Davis County and not his client, the Plaintiff/Appellant. (ABA Model Rules, 1.7, 1992.)

The following response is made in reference to the Memorandum Decision signed by Second District Court Judge, Jon Memmott. Comments are made in reference to pages in the Court document.

Page #1

After telephone calls and a visit to his office, Plaintiff/ Appellant's attorney was not available to discuss the results of the trial. The trial had been over almost two months without advice from my attorney. He sent a letter, but would not discuss the trial.

Page #2, #3

The Plaintiff/Appellant should be allowed all legal fees due to the County breaching the contract. The Plaintiff/Appellant complied with all legal responsibilities therefore the County should pay legal fees, damages, etc.

Page #4. (Findings of Fact)

(1) The flood control channel varied from 8 to 11 feet not the 11 feet the Court ruled on. The Plaintiff/Appellant insisted that the drain go under the North Davis sewer trunk line that has been leaking for decades.

(2) The Wetlands Act has been foreseeable since the 1970's. Section 404 has been applicable to Utah since 1977. If Mr. Sid Smith, Public Works Director, did not know

about Wetlands it was due to lack of performance in his position. Mr. Smith has never submitted a completed 404 permit applicaion. Due to private property owners challenging the Constitutional right of the Army taking use of private property for the Army's use makes the County's excuse void. The hearsay evidence the County used in the trial did not officially turn down the contract, engineered drain. All the letter stated was that there was a less damaging alternative.

(3) Mr. Oliver Graw's testimony could be potential wetlands from an aerial photograph showed a picture of Plaintiff/Appellant's plowing experiment. The comment that the wetlands issue was unforeseeable further justifies the dishonesty of the trial. It was never proved that the property was a natural wetlands or it was legal to violate the contract for that excuse.

(4) The prior experience with field drains was true due to the 10 field drains maintained in the field. The drains were a result of several soil scientists and engineers over the past 35 years.

(5) True

(6) a. The backhoe sat idle all summer, plus experienced neighbors volunteered to operate the equipment. With their \$17 million budget, the County could have rented a backhoe so the trench could be dug. As usual, public works in this county takes longer than necessary. Six years and no drain that should have been completed in one

year. Again, the defense of "impossibility" is invalid as stated by the Judge and throughout this Appeal Brief.

(6) b. Plaintiff/Appellant also had several meetings with the Army and State of Utah Environmentalists, and they all agreed that the storm water would benefit the Nature Conservancy Districts property if the drain was dug as designed. Their letters should have been hearsay due to the fact the County never completed the 404 permit and Plaintiff/Appellant was not allowed the privilege of cross examining the writers of the letters. The 23 June 1989 letter states that the 2 to 3 feet depth was a less damaging alternative. This destroys the productive capability of Plaintiff/Appellant's farm and does not meet the requirements of the wetlands data on private property. Plaintiff/Appellant asks, "less damaging to whom"?

(6) iii. The October 6, 1989 letter reaffirms the 404 application was not complete and uses the words less damaging alternative. It also states that they {County} would haul the excess material away. They could also do this for the 8 to 11 foot deep drain. This never did establish that the 8 to 11 foot deep channel was not acceptable. No completed 404 permit was ever submitted to be turned down. The farmers on the west side of the drain had installed a fifteen inch pipe from the Bluff Road to Gentile to carry the water from the upland drains. The 6 foot drain on Plaintiff/Appellant's side was for leaching purposes. The 200 to 300 second feet is new

water that the drain will be constructed to transport from the Cities and subdivisions.

(6) iv. The Army's hearsay letter refers to a new executive order that will be issued in the near future. The President will not issue an executive order. President Carter's executive order never intended to take the use of private property. It was for the use of Federal Agencies for their federal properties. When Congress passed the 1977 Clean Water Act, they were very specific in the States assuming the responsibility for the management of wetlands - - not the Army. Plaintiff/Appellant does not consider his property as waters of the United States. Also, the new drain would not impair the flow of water into the Great Salt Lake (Property of Utah). The drain would put the new water closer to the lake. The present water never flowed directly into the Great Salt Lake.

(6) iv. 3. The Corp of Engineers statement, " The Corps thinks that it is a laudable and prudent use of the storm drain water flowing into the Nature Conservancy District property for the improvement of their property and purification of the water."

(6) iv. 4. Again, the Army violates the Constitution and Congressional laws by including Utah Lake, Great Salt Lake, Mud Flats, sand flats, etc. The Attorney General for the State of Utah settled the ownership of Utah Lake thru several years of litigation. The Courts decided that Utah Lake and the Great Salt Lake were waters of Utah.

(6) iv. 5. The Army Corp is correct in stating it has taken no enforcement action or permit issuance or denial with Plaintiff/Appellant, Mr. Jensen, or the Defendant, Davis County. Mr. Brooks Carter, Army representative, has been helpful in furnishing information to use when Plaintiff/Appellant made calls to Washington D.C. or when trips were taken to see Congressmen and National Academy of Science in Washington D.C.

(6) iv. 6. President Reagan's Executive Order 12630 on the taking of private property for government use stating that it is still unconstitutional. Congress has supported Executive Order 12630 by submitting several bills supporting the Constitution. The Army Corps office in Washington stated that the regulation was unfair due to the fact that Utah is a desert State with alkali problems and Florida is a State with acid and water problems.

(6)iv. 7. The 404 section is only a small part of the 1977 Clean Water Act. It is involved with non point sources, pollution, State water rights, etc. Since these letters were written, there has been hundreds of court cases that the governments have paid millions of dollars in settlements for violating the U.S. Constitution.

The drains Plaintiff/Appellant has on his property have been maintained for 30 years; therefore, he has not violated any laws on his farm.

(6) iv. 8. Plaintiff/Appellant is still of the opinion that the County should live by the law and complete the

construction according to the contract which was prepared by a professional Engineering firm. It should have been completed in 1988. This is 1993 and the project is still not completed.

(7) The Court is guilty of allowing the false statements, and total disregard of private property owners and using the legal system to promote dishonesty and inefficiency. In six years, the County has not met its obligation. Syracuse City still intends to complete their drain. The County bonded for \$13 million to accomplish storm drain projects. Syracuse, West Point and Clinton, have proceeded on their own to correct their storm water problems. The primary factor for not proceeding is personnel interests and inefficiency in our County government. Each issue was not a legal excuse for not completing the project for six years.

(8) The County has been aware of the Syracuse block grant for two years. Again, they {County} are spending tax payers dollars to Ekitone when the original engineers provided a design that effectively used the storm water.

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