1993

Joseph Charles Jensen and Bessy T. Jensen v. Davis County, a body politic of the State of Utah : Brief of Respondent

Utah Court of Appeals

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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

1. Appellants have failed to provide a record transcript of all evidence relevant to any contested Findings of Fact or Conclusions of Law, so that a presumption exists that the verdict was supported by admissible and competent evidence.

2. Appellants have failed to marshal the evidence and demonstrate through the evidence that the trial court's Findings of Fact are legally insufficient.

3. Unless the Appellants can show that the trial court's Findings of Fact are clearly erroneous, the Appellate Court must not disturb them.

4. The trial court correctly applied the proper measure of damages for a breach of contract.

5. Appellants' claims of constitutional rights violations were not raised at the trial court or anywhere and, therefore, cannot be raised on appeal.

6. Appellants' acceptance of the benefits of the judgment estops Appellants from attacking the judgment on appeal.

7. Appellants are not entitled to attorney's fees.

ARGUMENT

POINT I

APPELLANTS' FAILURE TO PROVIDE A RECORD TRANSCRIPT OF ALL EVIDENCE RELEVANT TO ANY CONTESTED FINDINGS OF FACT OR CONCLUSIONS OF LAW REQUIRE THE PRESUMPTION THAT THE VERDICT WAS SUPPORTED BY ADMISSIBLE AND COMPETENT EVIDENCE.

After two full days of trial where numerous expert witnesses were examined and cross-examined, and exhibits were introduced, the court made Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and entered a judgment in favor of Appellants. A significant record was developed in the court below, yet Appellants have transcribed only the testimony of Sidney W. Smith, the Public Works Director of Davis County.

Appellants' brief makes only unintelligible references to the transcript or the record. Additionally, Appellants attempt to present to the court in their addenda hearsay evidence which was never presented in the trial court below and has nothing to do with the breach of contract claim asserted by Appellants in the lower court. The record in the trial court, therefore, becomes essential to understanding the facts presented to the judge which allowed him to make the ruling which he made. So important is the complete record that the court in Smith v. Vuicich, 669 P.2d 763 (Utah 1985), declared:

Where the record before us is incomplete, we are unable to review the evidence as a whole and must,

therefore, presume that the verdict was supported by admissible and competent evidence.

At page 765.

(See also Sampson v. Richins, 770 P.2d 998 (Utah Ct.App. 1989) cert denied, 776 P.2d 916 (Utah 1989)).

The court noted in Sampson that Rule 11(e)(2) of the Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure requires Appellants to provide the court with all evidence relevant to the issues raised on appeal. At page 1002 the court said:

Accordingly, because the entire record in this case is not before this court, we presume the trial court's findings are supported by competent and sufficient evidence...

The court went on to observe in Sampson that the findings must clearly indicate the mind of the court and resolve all issues of material fact necessary to justify the conclusions of law and the judgment entered. Without question, the Findings of Fact (Exhibit C) clearly indicate the mind of the court. The attention of the court is invited to paragraph 10 of the Findings of Fact where the judge acknowledges conflicting testimony from experts and indicates that he bases his findings upon the credibility and weight of the testimony of the experts. The court then specifically determined that the damage caused by Appellee's failure to clean the present storm drain was limited to 10% of the crop production per year. After hearing the evidence, the court specifically found that Appellants would not suffer damage from failure to dig the storm drain 11 feet deep. It is apparent from the findings of the court that the court was persuaded Appellants'

lack of crop production was substantially impacted by their failure to dig an interceptor drain on the northeast side of their property and to rip the hard pan on their property. The court found that \$4,165.03 was the amount of damage which resulted because Appellee Davis County failed to clean the present ditch. The Findings of Fact are clear and the inescapable conclusion is the court must affirm the lower court decision.

POINT II

APPELLANTS' FAILURE TO DEMONSTRATE THROUGH THE MARSHALLING OF EVIDENCE THAT THE TRIAL COURT'S FINDINGS WERE LEGALLY INSUFFICIENT REQUIRES THE DECISION OF THE LOWER COURT TO BE AFFIRMED.

A compelling reason why the Appellate Rules require a full transcript of the relevant evidence is noted in Doelle v. Bradley, 784 P.2d 1176 (Utah 1989):

To successfully attack the Findings of Fact, an appellant must first marshall all the evidence supporting the findings and then demonstrate that even if viewed in the light most favorable to the trial court, the evidence is legally insufficient to support the findings.

At page 1178.

Appellants are, therefore, required to marshall the evidence to demonstrate that the trial court's findings were insufficient. There is no recognizable marshalling of the evidence in Appellants' brief.

Citing Doelle with approval, the court in Turnbaugh v. Anderson, 793 P.2d 939 (Utah Ct.App. 1990) said,

Findings of fact "should not be set aside unless clearly erroneous, and due regard shall be given to the opportunity of the trial court to judge the credibility of the witnesses.

At page 941.

The clearly erroneous standard of Turnbaugh was also applied in State v. Martinez, 811 P.2d 205 (Utah App.Ct. 1991).

There is nothing in Appellants' brief or in the limited transcript of the record which even remotely rises to the level of "clearly erroneous." The trial court weighed the conflicting evidence and entered a judgment in Appellants' favor. It is apparent that Appellants are angry with the Army Corps of Engineers (not even a party) and Davis County and are not pleased with the ruling of the trial judge. Their brief is simply an attempt to retry the case to the Appellate Court using evidence that was not even introduced in the trial court rather than point out deficiencies in the facts upon which the trial court made its ruling. Such cannot be and this court must affirm the trial court below.

POINT III

THE TRIAL COURT CORRECTLY APPLIED THE PROPER
MEASURE OF DAMAGES FOR A BREACH OF CONTRACT.

It has long been established in Utah that the proper measure of damages for a breach of contract is to award an amount which is necessary to place the non-breaching party in as good a position as if the contract had been performed. Alexander v. Brown, 646 P.2d 692, 695 (Utah 1982). The court in Young Electric Sign Company v. United Standard West, 755 P.2d 162 (Utah 1988), relied upon Alexander and said,

In general, contractual damages are measured by
the lost benefit of the bargain...

At page 164.

In Keller v. Deseret Mortuary Company, 455 P.2d 197 (Utah 1969),
In Keller v. Deseret Mortuary Company, 455 P.2d 197 (Utah 1969),
the court instructed that when the claim is based upon a definite
contract the appropriate assessment of damages is:

...that a non-beaching party should receive an
award which will put him in as good a position as
he would have been had there been no breach.

At page 198.

In applying the law to the facts the trial court in this
case determined that Appellee breached the contract when it failed
to construct an 11 foot deep channel. However, the court also
found that a 6 foot deep channel would have drained Appellants'
property sufficiently to allow it to yield the same crop that it
would have if an 11 foot deep ditch had been dug. The 6 foot deep
ditch already in existence would have been cleaned if Appellee had
performed under the contract. Because the existing ditch was not
cleaned, Appellee caused some limited damage to Appellants' crop
production which the court specifically found was 10% of the
production per year for three and one half years. Therefore, if
Appellee had fully performed under the contract, Appellants would
have received \$4,165.03 in increased income from crop production.
Consequently, the damages awarded to Appellants places them in the
same position they would have been in if Appellee had fully
performed under the contract. The trial court's application of the
law to the facts is consistent with the standard set by the Supreme
Court and should be upheld on appeal.

POINT IV

APPELLANTS' CLAIMS OF CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHTS VIOLATIONS WERE NOT RAISED AT THE TRIAL COURT OR ANYWHERE AND, THEREFORE, CANNOT BE RAISED ON APPEAL.

The Complaint of Appellants filed by their first attorney and not modified by any of their subsequent attorneys asserted a breach of contract claim. The record is entirely devoid of any assertion that Appellants' constitutional rights were violated. Not before the trial court or anywhere else have Appellants raised constitutional issues until Appellants in their brief assert a constitutional taking of their property. Had Appellants raised the issue below, it would have been challenged because Appellee believed it paid Appellants fair market value for their property. However, it has long been recognized that issues not raised at trial cannot be raised on appeal.

In Pratt v. City Council of the City of Riverton, 639 P.2d 172 (1981), the court squarely addressed the issue. Responding to a constitutional claim for the first time on appeal the court said,

Issues not raised at trial cannot be raised on appeal. This general rule applies equally to constitutional issues, with the limited exception of where a person's liberty is at stake. Inasmuch as the constitutionality of the act was never raised at trial, plaintiffs are, therefore, precluded from raising it on appeal.

At page 173-174.

In Johnson v. Department of Employment Security, 782 P.2d 965 (Utah Ct.App. 1989), the court declined to address the issue of violation of constitutional guarantees of equal protection when Johnson raised the issue for the first time on appeal. The court

instructed,

...We do not consider issues raised for the first time on appeal. Rekward v. Industrial Commission, 755 P.2d 166, 168 (Utah Ct.App. 1988). This general rule applies to constitutional issues first raised on appeal as well as to other issues, unless a person's liberty is at stake. Pratt v. City Council of the City of Riverton, 639 P.2d 172, 173-174 (Utah 1981); see Pease v. Industrial Commission, 694 P.2d 613, 616 (Utah 1984) (petitioner has the responsibility to raise all issues that could be presented at the time, including constitutional issues, for the issues to be presented for appeal).

At page 972.

The foregoing are in accord with Crookston v. Fire Insurance Exchange, 817 P.2d 789 (Utah 1991), where the claim was that an award of compensatory punitive damages violated the ban on excessive fines and the due process provisions of the Utah Constitution. However, the claims were first argued on appeal. The Supreme Court declared,

Fire insurance did not, however, raise these arguments before the trial court and has, therefore, waived any right to present them on appeal....

At page 800.

Simply stated, Appellants cannot now raise claims of constitutional depravation for the first time on appeal.

POINT V

APPELLANTS ACCEPTANCE OF THE BENEFITS OF THE JUDGMENT ESTOPS APPELLANTS FROM ATTACKING THE JUDGMENT ON APPEAL.

Included as an addendum to this brief is a copy of the check issued by Davis County to Appellants Joseph Charles and Bessy T. Jensen in the amount of \$4,165.03 which is the same amount as

the judgment rendered by the court. The check was endorsed and presented for payment on January 19, 1993. Appellants have, therefore, accepted the benefits of the judgment while at the same time they are pursuing the appeal before this court. In Cingolani v. Utah Power and Light Company, 790 P.2d 1219 (Utah Ct.App. 1990), the court described the doctrine of acceptance of the benefits as follows:

Under the general acceptance-of-the-benefits doctrine, one who accepts a benefit under a judgment is estopped from later attacking the judgment on appeal, and one who acquiesces in the judgment cannot later attack. Tree v. Lewis, 738 P.2d 612, 613 (Utah 1987);...

At page 1221.

It is, therefore, clear that Appellants have accepted the benefit of the judgment and are estopped from attacking the judgment on appeal.

POINT VI

APPELLANTS ARE NOT ENTITLED TO ATTORNEY'S FEES.

Appellants seem to claim in their brief that the court erred by not awarding them attorney's fees. The trial court addressed the issue in its Conclusions of Law as follows:

Because the contract has no provision which allows at least one party to recover attorney's fees as required in Section 78-27-56.5 and because the court finds the defense was with merit and brought in good faith, the court does not award any costs or attorney's fees.

Section 78-27-56.5, Utah Code Ann. (1953) as amended, which was referenced by the court states the following:

A court may award costs and attorney's fees to either party that prevails in a civil action based

upon any promissory note, written contract, or other writing executed after April 28, 1986, when the provisions of the promissory note, written contract, or other writing allowed at least one party to recover attorney's fees.

The contract which gives rise to Appellants claim was signed on December 30, 1987. The contract has no provision about attorney's fees. The statute, therefore, precludes the court from awarding attorney's fees to either party.

The statutory provision is consistent with prior Utah case law. In Carr v. Enoch Smith Co., 781 P.2d 1292 (Utah Ct.App. 1989), the court said,

We do, however, find error in awarding attorney's fees in favor of Smith. "The general rule in Utah is that attorney fees cannot be recovered absent statutory authorization or contract." Cooper v. Deseret Federal Savings and Loan Association, 757 P.2d 483, 486 (Utah Ct.App. 1988). See also Mecham v. Benson, 590 P.2d 304, 309 (Utah 1979)....

At page 1296.


There is no provision in the contract between the parties for an award of attorney's fees, therefore, the ruling of the trial court about attorney's fees is proper and should be affirmed.

CONCLUSIONS

The Appellee respectfully submits that based upon the foregoing this court must dismiss the appeal and affirm the judgment of the lower court.